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, BEFORE THE SERVICES TRIBUNAL KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA. PESHAWAR

hi :-k;,-vi(:c Appral No. 886/2024 

*• Ibroi' Alam, (iCx-VVoi'dcrj aii.ached to District Jciil Timergara (Appellant)

-VERSUS---

1. inspec:k)r (icneral (4' Prisons, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Peshawar.
2. SripcrinLenden! Circle Neadquiarlers Prison, Mardan

(Respondents)

SUBJECT: JOINT PARA WISE COMMENTS OF RESPONDENTS No. 01 & 02

KlivHe*- Pstkhnikhwa 
IrihuoalRespectfully Sheweth;-

PRELIMINARY OBJECTION: I>ii:t-y No.

'FhaL Ll'ie prcsc ni service appeal is incompetent in its present form.
'Fhat the appellant has got no locus standi to file the instant appeal.
'Fhat the appellant has stopped by his own conduct to file appeal.
'Fhai the appellant has not come to this Honorable Service Tribunal with clean hands.

I OalvU

111

IV

'Fhat the prcseni. appeal is bad for mis-joinder and non-joinder of necessary parties. 
Thai the presenl appeal is badly Time-barred.
'Fhai the present appeal is not based on solid ground liable to be dismissed with cost.

VI

Vll

FACTUAL OBJECTIONS

1. Admitied lo the extent that the appellant was appointed as a Warder in Prisons 
Department in 2019 but soon after his induction, his conduct/character/attitudc and 
behavior was not good and upto the satisfaction of the superior.

2. Incorrect and nol admitted. 1'he appellant was not sincere, devoted and hard worker in 
Ills duly and not perforined his duty with punctuality and regularly and time and again 
created hurdles for the administration. That on 01/09/2023 the complainant namely 
Assam Ud Din lodged an application/complaint against the present appellant wherein he 
leveled allegation pertaining to misuse of the official authority of his own clash. 
Fabricated and fraudulent conduct'(Copy of complaint is enclosed as Annex-A). 
Accordingly, IG Prisons olTice letter dated 04/09/2023 intimated Superintendent District 
vJall 'Fimergara and lijrward a copy of the said complaint with the direction to look into 
the matter and submit his views/comments/detail report based on facts to the olTice ol' 
IG Prisons for further necessary action (Copy of letter is enclosed as Annex-B).

3. Detail of this Para is elaborated in Para-02 above.
4. Admitied to the extent that the Superintendent District Jail 'Fimergara being an 

important pari to the suit has neither been made as a party in the instanl case was 
issued a letter No. 1 162 dated 15/09/2023 to the office of IG Prisons being respondent 
Nol in the instanl case with the remarks that the department has no power or authorily 
1.0 selLle personal dispute of an employee with private persons. So, it was suggested that 
the complainant may be asked to approach the competent forum for settling and deciding 
his monetary dispute under Ihe law please (Copy of letter is enclosed as Annex-C).

5. Incorrect and not admitted. 'I'he competent authority initiated disciplinary action againsi 
Ihe present appellant and issued statement allegation on 16/11/2023 (Copy enclosed 
as Annex-D) and Mr. Riaz Ahmad Deputy Superintendent Central Prison Mardan was 
appointed/norninaiec.! as inquiry officer againsi the said accused with I'eference to the 
above allegation. Accoidingly the inquiry officer submitted his finding/inquiry report to 
the responck.mi No.2 with the recommendation that the accused official Is liable to be 
proceeded under the relevant rules ibid (Inquiry report enclosed as Annex-E).



,\Sk- |'''^«rrccl and noL adrnilxed. Consequent upon the Completion of inquiry proceedings the 

e -cornpelent authority served upon him show cause notice dated 08/01/2024 (copy 
* - enclosed as Annex-F) against which he furnished his written reply/defense without any 

documentary proof/evidence which 
- 7, Incorrect and not admitted.

found unsatisfactory.was
The competent authority after exhausting the codal 

l(jrmalitics as laid down in the E&D Rules 2011 awarded him the major penalty in shape 
of Removal from Service with immediate effect to the accused official attached to District 
vJail limergara lor his misconduct/misuse of official status/impersonation/fraud vide 
Superintendent Circle Headquarter Prison Mardan office order dated 01/02/2024 (copy 
enclosed as Annex-G),

8. Subject'to prool'.
9. Subject to proof.

Admitted to the extent that appellant preferred his departmental appeal 
18/04/2024 belore Inspector General of Prisons being the appellate authority against the 
impugned order ibid which was found barred by time and the decision of the competent 
authority was upheld and appeal of the appellant was rejected vide IG Prisons office 
order dated 24,/05/2024 (copy enclosed as Annex-H). It is settled principle of Law that 
when a departmental appeal is barred before the departmental authority, service appeal 
before the Honorable Service Tribunal is also incompetent. Similarly, a case titled Sultan 
Ayaz Khan Vs Superintendent Headquarter Prison D1 Khan etc in SA No.420/2011 (copy 
enclosed) was also dismissed as was hopelessly time barred.

No comments.

10, on

1 1.

GROUNDS.

A. Incorrect & misleading, the impugned orders dated 01/02/2024 and 24/05/2024 
passed by the competent authority as well as by the appellate authority was lawful, 
justified and after exhausting all the codal formalities laid down in the E&D Rules

. 2011. No discrimination has been committed with the appellant.
B. Detail of this Para is elaborated in Para-05 above.
C. Detail of this Para is elaborated in Para-A above
D. Incorrect and misleading. The inquiry officer recorded the statement of the present 

appellant as well as the order witnesses during course of inquiry proceedings, their 
statements ore attached as Annex-I).

E. Detail is this Para is elaborated in Para-02 above.
F. Detail is this Para is elaborated in Para-A above.
G. Detail is iliis Para is elaborated in Para-A above.
H. Any other ground may also be raised at the time of arguments but subject to prior 

permission of Khybcr Pakhtunkhwa Service Tribunal.

PRAYER.

Keeping in view the above mentioned facts/comments/submission, it is therefore 
most humbly prayed that on acceptance of these Para-wise comments on behalf of 
respondent No. 1 and 2, the appeal of the appellant may kindly be dismissed with cost, being 
baseless and devoid of merit.

USMAN MEH^D
INSPECTOR GENERAlIOF PRISONS 

KHYBEk-^gAKHXyNKHWA
(i^cspondcni No, 1)

NAJAMTItJSSAIN ABBASI
SUPERINTENDENT

CIRCLE HEADQUARTER PRISON MARDAN
(Respondent No, 2)

SUP! RfNTENDENT
^^LEr;^SONMAR0AI^



v>r ; gEFORE THE SERVICES TRIBUNAL KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA. Pl4pHAWAR
\

^ lh.St;rvice Appeal No. 886/2024
IbrarAlam, (Ex-Wardcr) attached to District Jail Timergara (Appellant)

-—VERSUS-—

1. Inspector General of Prisons, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Peshawar.
2. Superintendent Circle Headquarters Prison, Mardan

(Respondents)

COUNTER AFFIDAVIT ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENTS NQ.l and 2

Wc, the rollnwing undersigned respondents do hereby solemnly affirm and declare on oath

that the contents ol the Reply/Para-wise cornments in the above cited appeal are true and 

eorrect to the best of our knowledge and belief and that no material/facts have been kept 
concealed from this Honorable Service Tribunal. We further state on oath that the

■ answering respondents do not placed ex-parte nor their defense have been struck off.

Vv‘
(USMAN MEHSUD

INSPECTOR GENERaJ OF PRISONS
KHWA

NAJAM HUSSAIN ABBASI 
SUPERINTENDENT

CIRCLE HEADQUARTER PRISON MARDAN
(Respondent No. 2)

YR^ PAKHT^
(R c spTm^nTflM o.

KH
1)

SypmEHOEHT
PRISON MARDAN
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n.mmenl
liispccior General (Prisons) 

Khyber Pakhtunlchwa,
At Pesbawar.

Subject: application against innAP..............^/P alamzeb R/n
yiLMGg_PH.EKi DistrucT pmjMT.ARTLTP^fr.—
P^i^,g4)iJNlTIATE STRICT DEPARTMENT AS 
AS LEGAL ACTION,

: 0305-
________ _________________■■ WELL
IN THE nELQlV DSSCRfBg 

DETAIL MATTER. WHEREUY HE COMMITTED GROSS 
MIS-USE OF THE OFFICIAL AUTHORITY OF HIS OWN.
AS CONSTABLE PRESENTLY AT DISTRICT ’JaH,
TIMERGARA.

R/S

With profound veneration, it is hereby submitting as 
bclou';

1. Applicant is the local inhabitant of the specified area of Qa'i 

Abad Tulash District Dir/an law abide, peace loving.

of super messy of law in the region and all over :

5 irons

Iv-lie’.’cr

coi.inir)’.

the facts that tiie subject IBRAR o-2. Sli'.ady as well precisely to 

the co-villagw- 

circv-!rn::;ir>nc(;'> t

of the ap])licant. and inionvted ac 

attached thereto with the to tlw aptdiv.un : e.uc 

was raihci' is unforiun.uelt .icvu:
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h:C'. ,,f his family disiniies, wuti lus uiniily. m;-,r‘rioU'. OOl lO'' 

rl r.d 11 elfoi'l 0,11 l.iehair af the fuailv rneinbc-rs as wei! as

I'riiiti'til result at .ail. BASd LA r.:..w-
! ti-.-uar--."-a
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a, ..'.xieiuh-d hut ol no 

nihy 111'- 

fijia'.'nl d,
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To,

Eminent,
Inspector General of Prisons, 
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa,
At Peshawar.

Subject: APPLICATION AGAINST IBRAR S/O ALAMZEB R/O
VILLAGE DHERl DISTRICT DIR TALASH(CELL:0305-
9201524KINITIATE STRICT DEPARTMENT AS WELL
AS LEGAL ACTION JN THE BELOW DESCRIBE
DETAIL MATTER.WHEREBY HE COMMITTED GROSS
MIS USE OF THE OFFICIAL AUTHORITY OF HIS
OWN.AS CONSTABLE PRESENTLY AT DISTRICT JAIL
TIMERGARA.

R/S

With profound veneration, it is hereby submitting as below:

1. Applicant is the local inhabitant of the specified area of Qazi 

Abad Talash District Dir, an lav/ abide, peace loving, strong 

believer of super messy of law in the region and all over the 

country.

2. Shortly as well precisely to the facts that the subject IBRAR is 

the co-villager of the applicant and well informed about all the 

circumstances attached thereto vdth the to the applicant being 

fellow AND SINCE applicant was rather is unfortunately being 

serious nature .of his family disputes,with his family,in which 

certain efforts on behalf of the family members as well as local 

elders,extended but of no fruitful result at all.LASTLY rather 

eventually the . subject official of your esteemed department 

came forward with the proposal for settlement of the above 

family dispute,with the purposal,for., settlement of the above 

family dispute with his due influence all over the prison 

department.

3. That the subject Ibrar disclosed his immense alleged links 

with the prominent law enforcement agencies of the state 

specially ISI,IB and MI and pretext settle the matter for the 

applicant, however in this respect there are sufficient record is



available in rlie aliape of Whatsapp and other text irnagca, in 

evaUiation of which, it could be easily determined about the 

false and concocted inHucnce,

4 ' -
/

V

!

H. rurn to the crux of the matter, when he demanded certain 

heavy amount from the applicant, in response of whicii 

applicant lime to tirne paid total amount of Rs.750000 cash to 

the subject Ibrar and later on he demanded and more from the 

applicant by disclosing his above unrealistic official influence.

5. Sir applicant as belonging to a middle class having not vide 

source of his income rather limited one and obtained rather 

harrowed the above amount from his fellows, for just bonafide 

get resolve from the family dispute, but it is vein' unfortunate 

to say” that the subject culprit not only the betrayed to the 

applicanfbut also mis-use of his official authority, with the 

fabricated fraudulent conduct, hence applicant left no-cIue btit 

to file or submit this applicant to invoked your departmental 

exclusive authority,

It is therefore, most humbly requested in tlie light of the above
circumstances sketched in the seriated stanzas, stick-legal 

well as departmental action may very kindly please be lakcn 

against the subject official

as

\()ur. esteemed department 

CONSEQUENTLY the payment so paid on behalf 

applicant Rs,750000 may also please be convenient to laaencd

I !'; d

ui' the

accordinglv.

Applicant

y\J(5 ..y j'LI/■

■•S,1L
, ‘V0 r.'

’’ AsaW-^Uddin
S/c> KO is^ili Uddin 
R/o Village Qazi Abaci 
DisUu'i Lowci' DirTnl.i-a 
evil ();fi2-<ua7h()o

/■

/ y/i— y'C.-- / f

h\?/, (

/ ' / V

r*"'*■>

j

l/llryk xJ0 9^^ / V
ICopy fonveud: r\

/' 1
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available in the shape of Whatsapp and other text images, in 

evaluation of which, it could be easily determined about the 

false and concocted influence.

4. Turn to the crux of the matter, when he demanded certain 

heavy amount from the applicant, in response of which 

applicant time to time paid total amount of Rs.750000 cash to 

the subject Ibrar and later on he demanded and more from the 

applicant by disclosing his above unrealistic official influence.

5. Sir applicant as belonging to a middle class having not vide 

source of his income rather limited one and obtained rather 

harrowed the above amount from his fellows, for just bonafide 

get resolve from the family dispute, but it is very fortunate to 

say that the subject culprit not only the betrayed to the 

applicant but also mis-use of his official authority, with the 

fabricated fraudulent conduct, hence applicant left no clue but 

to file or submit this applicant to invoked your departmental 

exclusive authority.

It is therefore, most humbly requested in the light of the above 

circumstances sketched in the seriated stanzas,stick legal as 

well as departmental action may very kindly please b^ talcen 

against the subject official your esteemed department and 

CONSEXJUENLTY the payment so paid on behalf of the 

applicant Rs.750000 may also please be convenient to received 

accordingly.

Applicant

ASAM UDDIN
S/o Misbah Uddin 

R/o Village Qazi Abad 

District Lower Dir Talash 

Cell 0342-9137600
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OFFICE OF THE
INSPECTORATE GENERAL OF PRISONS 
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR
091-9210334, 921040609 091-9213445

To,
I

The Superintendent, 
District Jail Timergara

Subject: APPLICATION / COMPLAINT

Memo:

I am directed to refer to the subject and to forward herewith a copy 

of a complaint submitted by Mr.Asam Uddin S/O Mis bah Uddin resident of 

District Lower Dir against Mr.Ibrar S/O Alamzeb (Warder) posted at your jail 
for information.

I am further directed to ask you to look into the matter and submit 

your views/comments/detailed report based on facts within seven days 

positively to this office for further necessary action.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (E) 
INSPECTORATE GENERAL OF PRISONS 

KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR

/-ENDST: NO

Copy of the above is forwarded to P.S to Inspector General of
Prisons for information.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (E) 
INSPECTORATE GENERAL OF PRISONS 

KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR

i /
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OFFICE OF THE 
SUPERINTENDENT 

DISTRICT JAIL TIMERGARA
Phone/Fax : 0935-9250095 

Emaihdistrictjail  tiemrgara@gmail.com

No. 1162-WE Dated 16/09/2023

To, '

The Inspector General of Prisons, 
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa,Peshawar.

Subject: APPLICATION/COMPLAINT

R/Sir, ;

Reference yours office letter No.32249/WE dated 04.09.2023

Enclosed please find herewith a written. statement,in 

original,obtained from Warder (BPS-07) Ibrar Alam S/o Alam Zeb attached to 

this jail for kind information and further necessary action with the submission 

that statement of complainant and of warder concerned are contradictory to 

each other without any evidence and any proof presented or provided by both 

the parties.

It is further submitted that the Department has no power or 

authority to settled personal disputes of an employee with private persons.The 

warder can be proceeded against under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Government 
Servants (Efficiency & E)iscipline) Rules 26ll,when a criminal case is registered 

against him by the complainant in the court of law,So, the complainant may be 

asked to approach a competent forum for selling and deciding his monetary 

dispute under the law please.

SUPERINTENDENT 
DISTRICT JAIL TIMERGARA

mailto:tiemrgara@gmail.com
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or.aiii-a till: above imiiied Warder under Khyber hakhtunkhwa Cu'vernv'cr.t korN'nnt- 
ll'.lle e III 11 isei] ilil le) Ihili-S 20 1 1 .
I ti'- bu hr I j| iiendeiu I )ist riel Jail 'fiini-i u.iira lor in formal ion and lU'ces.sarv action. Ch.a y,;' si a ■ dMldir.'in’

ret'.iou-o
d

il> I.'-j ,1 1 im l-•.',■|l I 1, (III.; py of tin; Sunn: duly signed and d.ated by tlie above named oluciai. laay .'ct 11

n , 11 li-, .Ill c- ill I oUol I of it i; I ecei|)I.
-1 Mr. Muln. mmud Isom II Khali, ArhIsI lint Buporlntomlctit District Jail Timergara I'd ia!cria-in<‘.i

ilu •-! ! r-d 11, pi I ............ all I'e leva 111 I ei'oi'd on the dale ami lime I'l-Wil by I he 1 nquiry Ollicei'.
'fh'- al.i,3',- I lauini Win diT 12/1 > Suiieriniendenl I list riel -liiil 'I'inieigai'a with the du'ce'’''*'
1 hi- iiu|0a s' ( il 1 ii ri Ini ,he poi'iiose ol liiqiliiy jfrsH'eedii,};:!.

<j f.l r. A run I t Mda i ;'./<) Mi id lub Dddiil W / O Villa pe (,)a;-.i .Ahad, Disllict howsir Oil' 1 
(C'-U hi' Od'l2-d 1 AVI,ui)), lor inroi'inaiion.

lie is

Ivfo; cm ai'i'c-n'

/■

I.

^ L/
/ \

‘.C£n/ral l'>i
ipVrintciident:
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ruAROE SHEET

.-'■ I’rison Mardan, ns 
1

to District Jai!
(BPS-IH), Supci'intcitdDtil Circle Headquarter

fnp.gt-n7l Ibrar Man^SJOAla'H:^ attached
I, Muhaii'triad Arif Klinn 

;uithoritv, luTol.y charf-e you 

uiKicr.

r'
cooipeti'iii

Tiii'.critai'ii II!'

report of Superintendent Sub Jail Dtr Upper;-As per

from the Inspector General of 
Mr. Asam Uddin S/0 Mlsbah

A facts finding Inquiry was ^no ° was appointed as inquiry officer to
S„pc,l..c»l=»t Cun,.D«pu.y thP inquiry report .nd hi. nndlnp. vld.

Findings:- „„d statements of all concerned, it has been 

and Abid Khan for amount 

met with

through the relevant recordAfter going 
observed and found that:- 
7 Applicant produced three witnesses

four lac (400000) rupees.
8. Applicant produced witnesses that you went

intelligence Bureau Director. text messages as evidence
9. Applicant produced WhatsApp voice '‘"j or fake,

to.T.irrp;;.“ft‘A;L'.::‘'u;L'p;ce p-p-

12.You have provided an opportunity v -,tnesses ” 
but you failed to provide any evidence or witnesses.

namely Javed, Muhammad Sadlq

Islamabad and there you

, which needs further verification 

400000/- and presented
I

aisconducl under rule 3 of the Ktnber 
and have rendered yourself liable

By icnsons of the above, you appeared to be guilty of mn.. 
' vornment Scivants (Efficiency & Disciplinary) Rules 2011

I'akhtunklnva Go 
to nil or an\' of the pcn.alties specified in rule 4 of the rules ibid.

defense if any within ten (10) days of tnercqtiired to submit your writtenTherefore you arc 
reccipi of tins Ciiarge Sheet to the inquitT officer.

should rcacli to the inquiry officer within tlte specified period, failing wliich

in that case E-'t-P:irie action sltall be
Tour urinen defense, if any

presumed that you have nothing in your defense and
1-

ii sh.ill 'k: 
uikvii against you.

Iniiiniiie whotlier you desire to be heard in person. 
A bliitciiieiU of alleg.aiions is enclosed.

2-
V //.3 /

.•■X I

SUPERINTENDENT 
CIRCLE tigs. PRISON MARDAN ,:!

1

I
\UV I\

>

Itiintcnricntpcjjuty J 
fe^tral I’lison MnrdUjji
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■\C OFFICE OF THE 
SUFORINTBNDENT 

CFNTKALI’RISON MARDAN 
/gj {^0937-M3ll4

E-Mail: tnarJanjailT/),gmail.com.
N(i. DaicJ: 06/01/2024

r-

W
j.'r 1.

I I f < J‘ *< " J* t t I' *1'i ^ i* '^1M,i4.f> cl* VEmOti

'Fo.

The Superintendent
Circle Headquarter Prisons Mardan.

Subject; DISCIPLINARY ACTION/IKOUIRY.
R/Sir. ■ , ' ■

Reference to your good office letter Endst No. 3238-43 dated 

16,1 1.2023 on the subject noted above.

1 enclosed herewith' my inquiry report consisting of five (05) pages 

along with relevant annexure “A” to “L” for favour of further disposal, please.

d
Riaz Ahmad (Inquiry Officer) 
DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 
CENTRAL PRISON MARDAN

^pi^' s\y: r-rintciidelif 
i^n Alurdu^<nrra

Scanned with CamScanner
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Tlic Supcrinlcndcnl,
Circle Meaciquarter r'rir.011 Mardan.

Subject: DISCIPLINARY ACTION/INOUIRY.

R/Sir;

Rcfcioncc to your office letter Endst No. 3238-43 dated 16-11-2023 on the
subject noted ttlxive.

As per complaint submitted by Mr. Assam Uddin S/0 Misbah Uddin R/0 Village 
Qaci Abaci District Dir LowcrTalash. The competent authority has appointed the undersigned 
as inqtiiiy olliccf. In light of the above mentioned order, the undersigned called the accused 
officia! and the applicant along with record and witnesses to Central Prison Mardan on 
20.12.2023 to conduct the inquiry. Inquiry of the said accused warder is conducted in 
Ccaural Prison Mardan on 20.12.2023. Findings and recommendations are as under.

ACTUAL CASE (INSIDE STORYl:

Complainant Assam Uddin took the services of accctsed Warder Ibrar Alam for 
resolving his family issues. Responding to his family issues, Assam Uddin told that his wife 
alongwich two kids is disappeared by his step brother in law since long and he had no idea 
about itieir whereabouts. In order to trace out their location, complainant Assam Uddin 
approached accused Warder Ibraf Alam. Warder Ibrar Alam pledged to resolve the issue 
ihrougli intelligence agencies for consideration of money. Accused Warder Ibrar Alarn 
received Rupees seven lacs and fifty thousand (7,50,000) from complainant Assam Uddin as 
per his statement. According to Assam Uddin, he is betrayed by accused Warder Ibrar Alaju 
and hence lie ai^pi-oachecl Prison Department to look into the matter.

STATEMENT OF APPLICANT ASSAM UDDIN:

Mr. Assam Uddin upheld his complaint forwarded to Inspector General of Prisons 
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar (Attached as annex-A)

CROSS EXAMINATION:

As per tjuesLionnaire of Mr. Assam Uddin (Attached as annex-B), he had 
acquaintance with Warder Ibrar Alam through Mr. Rabat. Mr. Rabat introduced Warder Ibrar 
as an employee in District vJail Timcrgara. Further, Mr. Rabat added that it seems that 
Warder Ibiar also works for iniel!igcncc and he will sort out your problems. Assam Uddin 
added that be visited Ibrar Alam's house occasionally. As per reply of /tssam Uddin he told 
liiat for a couple of lime Rabat and Abid were also accompanying me during visit to Ibrar 
Alum’s liousc. According to Assam Uddin, on that x'eiy day Ibrar Alam took Rupees Four Lacs 
(400,000) from me in presence of Abid. Abid accompanied me from Swat to Talaash in black 
color cro\^'ll ear 'I hereafter, we proceeded to Sakhakol where Abid left us and, 1 and Ibrar 
Alam moved lo Islamaliad in Xid Corollii to meet so called Director General (DO) for resolving 
my issLii.'

Moi'i.'iwcr, 1 never 
Assismni. Dirceioi'm ln.
U) sijir Wai dr'i' 
llial lie never Ijoi'no'.'i■
Alam us elmniei

asked Ibrar Alam about his job. Yet lie told me that he is 
While asking Assam Uddin that why he didn’t approacii legal forum 

r Alam loi' the; Irniid, Mr. Assrtm eoukin'i reply. Furthermore, Assam told
ill's brother namely Nasecr

Jf*; I

<i K'up.res Ten hires (10, 00,000) from Ibr 
li’,’ I hi'ur' AInm.

mn distrandnig lor K’upees Seven l.iies and Fifty Thousand (7, 50,000) from 
Waitlei Ibru' w'liri li lit; dc'etved rae lor resolving my kimilv matter.

STATEMENT OF WITNESS. JAVCn-

Mr ,)n\ i d uplield Ins pieviuus sialeiiieiu recorded bv Mr Naveed Iqbal Assistant 
Supcnmendenl Suh,J:nl Dir Upper. (Attached as annex-C)
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To,

The Superintendent,
Circle Headquarter Prison Mardan.

Subject: DISCIPLINARY ACTION/INOUIRY,

R/Sir;

Reference to your office letter Endst No. 3238-43 dated 16-11-2023 on the
subject noted above.

As per complaint submitted by Mr. Assam Uddin S/O Misbah Uddin R/0 
Village Qazi Abad District Dir Lower Talash. The competent authority has appointed the 
undersigned as inquiry officer. In light of the above mentioned order, the undersigned 
called the accused official and the applicant along with record and witnesses to Central 
Prison Mardan on 20.12.2023' to conduct the inquiry. Inquiry of the said accused warder is 
conducted in Central Prison Mardan on 20.12.2023. Findings and recommendations are as 
under.

ACTUAL CASE IINSIDE STORYl:

Complainant Assam Uddin took the services of accused Warder Ibrar Alam for 
resolving his family issues. Responding to his family issues, Assam Uddin told that his wife 
alongwith two kids is disappeared by his step brother in law since long and he had no idea 
about their whereabouts. In order to trace' out their location, complainant Assam Uddin 
approached accused Warder Ibrar Alam. Warder Ibrar Alam pledged to resolve the issue 
through intelligence agencies for consideration of money. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam 
received Rupees seven lacs and fifty thousand (7,50,000) from complainant Assam Uddin 
as per his statement. According to Assam Uddin, he is betrayed by accused Warder Ibrar 
Alam and hence he approached Prison Department to look into the matter.

STATEMENT OF APPLICANT ASSAM UDDIN:

Mr. Assam Uddin upheld his complaint forwarded to Inspector General of 
Prisons Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar (Attached as annex-A)

CROSS EXAMINATION;

As per questionnaire of Mr. Assam Uddin (Attached as annex-B), he had 
acquaintance with Warder Ibrar Alam through Mr. Rabat. Mr. Rabat introduced Warder 
Ibrar as an employee in District Jail Timergara. Further, Mr. Rabat added that it seems 
that Warder Ibrar also works for intelligence and he will sort out your problems. Assam 
Uddin added that He visited Ibrar Alam’s house occasionally. As per reply of Assam Uddin 
he told that for a couple of time Rabat and Abid were also accompanying me during visit to 
Ibrar Alam’s house. According to Assam Uddin, on that very day Ibrar Alam took Rupees 
Four Lacs (400,000) from me in presence of Abid. Abid accompanied me from Swat to 
Talaash in black color crown car. Thereafter, we proceeded to Sakhakot where Abid left us 
and, I and Ibrar Alam moved to Islamabad in XLI Corolla to meet so called Director General 
(DG) for resolving my issue.

Moreover, I never asked Ibrar Alam about his Job. Yet he told me that he is 
Assistant Director in IB. While asking Assam Uddin that why he didn’t approach legal 
forum to sue Warder Ibrar Alam for this fraud, Mr. Assam couldn’t reply. Furthermore, 
Assam told that he never borrowed Rupees Ten Lacs (10, 00,000) from Ibrar’s brother 
namely Naseer Alam as claimed by Ibrar Alam.

I am demanding for Rupees Seven Lacs and Fifty Thousand (7, 50,000) from 
Warder Ibrar which he deceived me for resolving my family matter.

STATEMENT OF WITNESS JAVED:

Mr. Javed upheld his previous statement recorded by Mr. Naveed Iqbal 
Assistant Superintendent Sub Jail Dir Upper. (Attached as annex-C)



I

CROSS EXAMINATION:

As ]:)(jr quc.stioiuiaii'c of Mr. Javcd (Attached as annex-D) that while 
telephonic conversation with Mr, Asstitll, he withdrew Rupees Four lacs from Allied Bank 
Bnhinihai Tiinc:i>tnra mid handed over the same amount to Mr. Sadiq in Tiinery
(hat was to be ixaeived Ire Mr. Ass.ani Uddin til Tnitiasli.

on

arti

STATEMENT OF WITNESS MUHAMMAD SADIQ:

Mr. Muliaininad Sadiq uplick! his previous slatcmc:it recorded by Mr. Navecd 
Iqbal Assistant Stipci intendent Sub Jtiil Dir Upper. (Attached as annex-E|

CROSS EXAMINATION:

As per questionnaire of Mr. Muhammad Sadiq (Attached as annex-F) I arn 
worlnng as salesperson in Mr. Assam’s shop located in village Talaash. i received Rupees 
-100,000 from Mr. vJaved in Timergara on directions of Mr. Assam ,I handed over the same 
amount to Mr. Ass;trn in Talaash. Mr. Assam came to Talaash from Swat in black color crown 
car. Furthermore, he told that 1 don't know Warder Ibrar.

STATEMENT OF WARDER ABDULLAH S/O MUHAMMAD ALT JAN R/O MUNDA. KHADl 
KHELA. TEHSIL SAMAR BAGH. DISTRICT LOWER DIR:

As per statement of Warder Abdullah (Attached as annex-G) 1 joined Prison 
Department as warder on 17'i' August 2022, I am acquainted with Warder Ibrar for the past 
10 months. 1 am using an casypaisa account since two years. Amongst the two brothers Ibrar 
Alam and Nascer Alain, my casypaisa account number was given to an anonymous person 
by one of ilicin; tn order to receive amount Rupees Thirty thousand (30,000), On 27.02.2023, 
I received Rujiees 'riiirty thousand (30,000) through casypaisa. I withdrew money from 
casypaisa account and handed over Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000) to Naseer Alarn in 
presence of Ibrar Alam. Apart from this, I had never done any transaction neither with Ibrar 

Alam nor his brother Nascer Alam.

CROSS EXAMINATION:
; examined. Questionnaire is attached as (annex-H) 

that how does he know Warder Ibrar Alam? Warder Abdullah
Warder Abdullah was cross

Reidving m question No. 1 . . -x-. ■ i
replied that -he is inv fellow and they arc serv'ing in District Jail Tirnergara, They know each 
other from the pasMcn months. Ref to Question No. 2, that who is Naseer Alam and since 

know liiin? Abdullah told that Nascer Alam is brother of Warder Ibrar Alamhow long do you
and know fiim through ibrar Main, Ref to question No. 3, that who transferred amount 
Rupees Tiiinv Thousand (30,000) to your account? Abdullah couldn't reply for that. Replying 
to qucsiion No 1, Abdullali handed over amount Rupees Thirty Thousand (30.0001 to Nascer 

of llirar Alam. Replying lo question No. 5, Abdullah c.xpresscd that ! andAlam in presence . . , rx • .
Ibrar were skimj; in pai k outside Jail. Ibrar iold that you will receive amount Rupees Thirlv 
Thousand (31.),000). Replying to c[ucstic)n No, 6, Abdullah told that 1 don’t know cxacthmvho

number lo the sender to receive money. Replying to question No. 7.forwarded nn'i-a.syj'iaiMi • v- e
Slated ilun I had never eoiiiactcti Naseer Alam on phone. As per reply of question No. b,

beiielils from Ihnl Iransaclion, Replying lo que.stion No. 9,Abdullah mid dial I no
Id di.a Ibiar Alain f',a\'e my accouni nuiiibor to,the sender. I don't knosv why lie 
•,,111)1 nnmher. ld:|)lyiii}’, lo ciuestion No. 10. Abdullah expressed that I use my 

mil (ill |)ri-;ii)nal tiav It) day bu.siness. f-teplying to c|uestion No. I 1, .Abdullah 
vc-i Rupees Tliirty Thousand (30.000) in oasli to Ibrar Alam and

Aljdull.all In 
ynv: iny a'.vi 
e;isyj>ae>: 
eonlessiv 
N;i-.r-el Almii

I 1".

jai I' l< 'I

STATEMENT OF ACCUSED WARDER IIIRAR ALAM;

Wmdi-i Ibrar Alam siah il on the oalli attached as (iinncx-I) that the witnesses 
eaiiiplaiilani Assam Uddin are unknown to me, 1 didn't travel to Islamabad 

know any np.eiiey's tlireclor. There is no witness for Rupees
produced by 11 w 
before any witne-e. am
Four l.aes and nnihi.-i 1 leeeived inones' through my casypaisa account. If there is

tiui I, il 111 1111 lid be ])ruved againsi me. I didn't claim Rupees Ten Lacs (10, 00,000),

lei1 ir

any iraiisae
therefore, I don't need lo produei.- mi)' witness or evidence; as this matter solely pertains 
my brother and Assam Uddin. I )-equesi ihe statik lioldcrs of my department

to
that It IS a
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CROSS EXAMINATION;

As per questionnaire of Mr. Javed (Attached as annex-D) that while 
telephonic conversation with Mr. Assam, he withdrew Rupees Four lacs from Allied Bank 
Balambat Branch Timergara and handed over the same amount to Mr. Sadiq in Timergara 
that was to be received by Mr.-Assam Uddin at Talaash.

STATEMENT OF WITNESS MUHAMMAD SADIQ;

on

Mr. Muhammad Sadiq upheld his previous statement recorded by Mr. Naveed 
Iqbal Assistant Superintendent Sub Jail Dir Upper. (Attached as annex-E)

CROSS EXAMINATION:

As per questionnaire of Mr. Muhammad Sadiq (Attached as annex-P) I am 
working as salesperson in Mr. Assam’s shop located in village Talaash. I received Rupees 
400,000 from Mr. Javed in Timergara on directions of Mr. Assam ;l handed over the same 
amount to Mr. Assam in Talaash. Mr. Assam came to Talaash from Swat in black color 
crown car. Furthermore, he told that I don’t know Warder Ibrar.

STATEMENT OF WARDER ABDULLAH S/O MUHAMMAD ALI JAN R/O MUNDA. KHADI
KHELA. TEHSIL SAMAR BAGH. DISTRICT LOWER DIR;

As per statement of Warder Abdullah (Attached as annex-G) I joined Prison 
Department as warder on 17*^ August 2022. 1 am acquainted with Warder Ibrar for the past 
10 months. I am using an easypaisa account since two years. Amongst the two brothers 
Ibrar Alam and Naseer Alam, my easypaisa account number was given to an anonymous 
person by one of them; in order to receive amount Rupees Thirty thousand (30,000). On 
27.02.2023, I received Rupees Thirty thousand (30,000) through easjrpaisa. I withdrew 
money from easypaisa account and handed over Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000) to 
Naseer Alam in presence of Ibrar Alam. Apart from this, I had never done any transaction 
neither with Ibrar Alam nor his brother Naseer Alam.

CROSS EXAMINATION;

Warder Abdullah was cross examined. Questionnaire is attached as (annex-H) 
Replying to question No. 1 that how does he know Warder Ibrar Alam? Warder Abdullah 
replied that he is my fellow and they are serving in District Jail Timergara. They know each 
other from the past ten months. Ref to Question No. 2, that who is Naseer Alam and since 
how long do you know him? Abdullah told that Naseer Alam is brother of Weirder Ibrar 
Alam and know him through Ibrar Alam. Ref to question No. 3, that who transferred 
amount Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000) to your account? Abdullah couldn’t reply for 
that. Replying to question No. 4, Abdullah handed over amount Rupees Thirty Thousand 
(30,000) to Naseer Alam in presence of Ibrar Alam. Replying to question No. 5, Abdullah 
expressed that I and Ibrar were sitting in park outside Jail. Ibrar told that you will receive 
amount Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000). Replying to question No. 6, Abdullah told that I 
don't know exactly who forwarded my easypaisa number to the sender to receive money. 
Replying to question No. 7, he stated that I had never contacted Naseer Alam on phone. As 
per reply of question No. 8, Abdullah told that I got no benefits from that transaction. 
Replying to question No. 9, Abdullah told that Ibrar Alam gave my account number to the 
sender. I don’t know why he gave my account number. Replying to question No. 10, 
Abdullah expressed that I use my easypaisa account for personal day to day business. 
Replying to question No. 11, Abdullah confessed that I handed over Rupees Thirty 
Thousand (30,000) in cash to Ibrar Alam and Naseer Alam.

STATEMENT OF ACCUSED WARDER IBRAR ALAM:
Warder Ibrar Alam stated on the oath attached as (annex-I) that the witnesses 

produced by the complainant Assam Uddin are unknown to me. I didn’t travel to Islamabad 
before any witness and neither I know any agency’s director. There is no witness for Rupees 
Four Lacs (400,000) and neither I received money through my easypaisa account. If there is 
any transaction, it should be proved against me. I didn’t claim Rupees Ten Lacs (10, 
00,000), therefore, I don’t need to produce any witness or evidence; as this matter solely 
pertains to mv brother and Assam Uddin. I request the stack holders of my department



'i:riniimil Rjirif> wlio blnckinnils people {incl grnb money. You’re requested to have mercy upon 
\3c and resolve this issue ns this is enlircly n private issue between Assam Uddin and my 

■ : • brother, 1 inn {lischnrj’ing iny tUitios with responsibility and honesty.

.

r-

CROSS EXAMINATION:

As per questionnaire {Attncliod ns nnnex-J) of nceuscci warder Mr. Ibrar, he 
ciciiicd of tin; elinri'es levelled ngninsl him by Assam Uddin. Me added that I never look a 
penny from Mr. A.s.snm Uiiilin and ncillier 1 iinpcrsinuited myself ns Assistant Director in IB. 
Further lie added lluii the whidsApp voice note.s prcticntcd by Assam Uddin to the inquiry 
team arc fake. Ihiwever. 1 coninclcd Mr. Assam Udtiin twice through WIiai.sApp to ask hi.s 
wellbeing. When askcii to iJroducc any evidence about that Assam Uddin ha.s borrowed Rs. 
lO.OO.Otk) (Ten liie.s) from his brother Nnscer Alnm, he replied that he didn’t need to produce 
any evideiu;<“ as it is ;i private matter between Assam Uddin and Nascer Alam, He further 
suggested that Assam Uddin should approach concerned court of law for resolution of his 
matter wiili 'Nnseer Alam.

ANALYSIS OF WHATSAPP VOICE RECORDS:
Relevant record of VVhatsApp voice notes and a tiktok video were thoroughly 

examined by the under signed. The cellular numbers used in voice chat presented by As.sam 
Uddin belonged to complainant Assam Uddin and accused Ibrar Alam (Attached as annex- 
K). The voice chats were examined by a panel of Assistant Superintendents assisting 
undersigned in inquirj’. Various samples of voice were recorded from both the complainant 
and accused. The accent in freshly recorded voice notes duty matched with the voice 
messages provided by complainant Assam Uddin to the inquiry officer.

In one of the voice notes accused Warder Ibrar Alam consoles complainant 
Assam Uddin after hearing his family issue and advises not to involve police into the matter. 
Accused Warder Ibrar Alam urge's that our capability of accomplishing tasks is twofold 
compared to oihcrs/policc. Moreover, accused Warder Ibrar Alam says that he bears old 
relationship with them (Intelligence) based on mutual trust and that he discharges his duties 
wiili ihcm (Imelligence).

the

Regarding complainant Assam Uddin family matter, accused Warder Ibrar Alam 
assures him that he has tackled his matter with them (Intelligence) downtown.

in one of the voice note, accused ibrar Alam is asking Assam Uddin whether to 
provide him UBL account or easypaisa account. Secondly, after receiving amount, accused 
ibrar Alam extends thanks to Assam Uddin and confirms the transaction.

Throughout the voice notes, it was itisisted by accused Ibrar Alnm to keep the 
deal/inaucr :ir, secret one. Accused Ibrar Alam mentioned llic terms DG office. CCPO. 
Commandant. 1)1(1, DI’O, Brigadier, Colonel, secrecy, sensitive place etc in the voice notes. 
In one of the voice notes be used the word “Mnshar” for his boss.

(Similarly, in the exchanged voice notes, visit to Islnmabad was planned to meet 
D(1 and liir < cinv<mii-nee they would use to go to Islamabad was discussed ns well. In order 
lo k.-ep the maiic-r sreivt. Warder Ibrar Alnm stressed not to take driver during tlteir trip to 
IslaiiKdjarl MfMTover, hrrore ibeir dciKirturc to Islamabad, Assam Uddin ■ 
ibiar Alam that bis “Anianai" is with him. That '‘Amanat' refers to tiioney for accused 
Alam.

assures accused 
Ibriii'

In l)i<’ Iasi vuici- noii 
Wardf I lliiai Alain .ilimil die a:::.

•-‘i. fomplaiiumt Assam Uddin is repciiiedly asking accused 
"i«k (family issue), ibrar Alam is reluctant and rarclv

ch-Ki''cic'iied lie I-I'I ' , • ’ ’ ‘ ilcdaycd due to recent

ir, ' I,;;-r
of neensed Warder Ihiai Alam and Vi n • fulfilled all the demands
Respondini; m Asam Uri Dm mVu-.-.l ''i" n'’ ^^‘'H’lninatU’s matter resolved,
for tn.eing il,e loealion. II ihV mml- olu".' '"i amount was only
Twenty l.aia: [20. (KlU(.O) ,ei|| furllier he needed'^' ‘T'
relationship beiwi'en nimnl-iin-mi a • ’ r i , uotes it is observed lliat the' ........" '■V<1 W.,rtl„r Ibrur Alan, got worscnotl.
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Q&M/
that it is a criminal gang who; blackmails people and grab money. You’re requested to have 

• mercy upon me and resolve this issue as this is entirely a private issue between Assam 
Uddin and my brother. 1 am discharging my duties with responsibility and honesty.

CROSS EXAMINATION;

As per questionnaire (Attached as annex-J) of accused warder Mr. Ibrar, he 
denied of the charges levelled against him by Assam Uddin. He added that I never took a 
penny from Mr. Assam Uddin and neither I impersonated myself as Assistant Director in 
IB. Further he added that the whatsApp voice notes presented by Assam Uddin to the 
inquiry team are fake. However, I contacted Mr. Assam Uddin twice through WhatsApp to 
ask his wellbeing. When asked to produce any evidence about that Assam Uddin has 
borrowed Rs. 10,00,000 (Ten lacs) from his brother Naseer Alam, he replied that he didn’t 
need to produce any evidence as it is a private matter between Assam Uddin and Naseer 
Alam. He further suggested that Assam Uddin should approach concerned court of law for 
resolution of his matter with Naseer Alam.

ANALYSIS OF WHATSAPP VOICE RECORDS;

Relevant record of WhatsApp voice notes and a tiktok video were thoroughly 
examined by the under signed. The cellular numbers used in voice chat presented by 
Assam Uddin belonged to complainant Assam Uddin and accused Ibrar Alam (Attached as 
annex-K). The voice chats were examined by a panel of Assistant Superintendents assisting 
the undersigned in inquiry.; Various samples of voice were recorded from both the 
complainant and accused. The accent in freshly recorded voice notes duty matched with 
the voice messages provided by complainant Assam Uddin to the inquiry officer.

In one of the voice notes accused Warder Ibrar Alam consoles complainant 
Assam Uddin after hearing his family issue and advises not to involve police into the 
matter. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam urges that our capability of accomplishing tasks is 
twofold compared to others/police. Moreover, accused Warder Ibrar Alam says that he 
bears old relationship with' them (Intelligence) based on mutual trust and that he 
discharges his duties with them (Intelligence).

Regarding complainant Assam Uddin family matter, accused Warder Ibrar 
Alam assures him that he has tackled his matter with them (Intelligence) downtown.

In one of the voice note, accused Ibrar Alam is asking Assam Uddin whether to 
provide him UBL account or eas5qDaisa account. Secondly, after receiving amount, accused 
Ibrar Alam extends thanks to Assam Uddin and confirms the transaction.

Throughout the voice notes, it was insisted by accused Ibrar Alam to keep the 
deal/matter as secret one. Accused Ibrar Alam mentioned the terms DG office, CCPO, 
Commandant, DIG, DPO, Brigadier, Colonel, secrecy, sensitive place etc in the voice notes. 
In one of the voice notes he used the word “Mashar” for his boss.

Similarly, in the exchanged voice notes, visit to Islamabad was planned to meet 
DG and the convenience they would use to go to Islamabad was discussed as well. In order 
to keep the matter secret. Warder Ibrar Alam stressed not to take driver during their trip to 
Islamabad. Moreover, before their departure to Islamabad, Assam Uddin assures accused 
Ibrar Alam that his “Amanat” is with him. That “Amanat” refers to money for accused Ibrar 
Alam.

In the last voice notes, complainant Assam Uddin is repeatedly asking accused 
Warder Ibrar Alam about th? assigned task (family issue). Ibrar Alam is reluctant and 
rarely replies to complainant Assam Uddin. In one of the reply through whatsApp voice 
notes accused warder Ibrar Alam Says to Assam Ud Din that his matter is delayed due to 
recent chaos created by PTI supporters (referring to 9* May 2023 incident) and that they 
are busy in handling the situation/crises. Assam Uddin is urging that he has fulfilled all 
the demands of accused Warder Ibrar Alam and it is now his turn to get complainant’s 
matter resolved. Responding to Asam Ud Din, accused warder Ibrar Alam revealed that the 
amount was only for tracing the location. If the wants physical hands over of his kids, an 
amount of Rupees Twenty Lacs (20, 00000) will further be needed. From the voice notes it
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1. Tl\c cxiuuiiicd voice 
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notes conversed heUveen licensed Warder ll)rar Alain and complaii......
Uddin iip|)arcnlly depicts Hint Iliese notes iicloni' to tlicsc two, yet for 

anilientivation tiu'sc voit;c notes need a foreiniic.
2. 1 hou|’,li llie aci-iised Warder Ibrar Main didn’t ilisclose liis identity as AssisianI Director 

|iB) in voice notes hut lie is persistently direetinj' Assam Uddin to keep the rnaiier 
sceivi one and not reveal in public which shows his iinjJersonafion. The above used worrls 
(i;tvcn In record) prima facie lends to accused Ibrar Alain’s impersonation as if he is 
workini; for some intellipencc ni'cncy. Also he is pcrnistcntly sayiiif' in voice notes tliai I 
am busy in on'ieiul meetings.

3. Mr. Abid, llie previmis eye witness of Rupees I'our Lues (-100,000) examined by inquiry 
oflieer Nnvecd Iqbal Assistant Supcrintcnclenl Sub Jail Dir Upper, lias departed for KSA. 
Remaining iwo witnesses (Jnved and Sndiq) for Rupees Four Lacs (“lOO.OOO) v/ere 
c.xamined and lliey stuck to their stolemcnts recorded in previous inquiry, daved toki ttiai 
1 withdrew amount Rupees Four Lacs (400,000) for Assam Uddin and hantled over to 
Sadiq so lluu Assam Uddin may receive it at Toiaash. Till now it shows that this arnouni 
was meant to be delivered to the accused Warder Ibrar Alam. As in the exchanged voice

between Assam Uddin and Ibrar Alam, Assam Uddin assures Ibrar Alam before 
rieparuire to Islamabad that his “Amanal” (Money) is with him. ,i - i •

4. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam is expressly showing unfamiliarity with the witness iMadm 
his smtcmcni produced before the undersigned. But in his voice chat with Asam Ud Dm. 
he discussed with him that he has contacted Abid through voice note. Accused Ibrar Alarn 
further sqid to complainant Asam Ud Din not to inform Mr. Abid (witness of comp ainan 
Asam Ud Din) about the mailer. Moreover, in a liklok video both Abid and Ibrar Alam can 
be seen in a happy mood. Therefore, it is concluded that the accused warder Ibrar Aloin

Abid knew each other will before and that the accused warder ibra

• r .= n:mt
, 1

ri'i

ero-i'i

notes

and the witness Mr.
Alam gave misstatement to the undersigned. . , .i

the witnesses and exchanged voice notes, it is proved that the
Talaash whereafter they

5. While e.xamining
complainant Assam Uddin came from Swat to pick Ibrar Alam in 
□rocceded to Islamabad to meet so called D.G (Director General)

6 While inquiring about the easypaisa number 0305-9000988. Warder ibrar expressly told 
linn 1 have no information about this number and neither I have done any irunsaction 
ihrough this number. Warder Ibrar Alam expressed himself unaware about the 
iransaciion of amount Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000).

7 On ihe coninuy, upon further investigation, the easypaisa number 030d-90009S8 
irnced out bv ihc undersigned and interestingly the number belonged to an employee oi 
Prison D.-panmcni presently posted al Dislricl Jail Timergara. His details are (Attached

\\’as

8 ■riiol i!i<- mKlersigned deemed il neccssaiy lo include Warder Abdullah into the inquiry to 
’ reach llie depth of ilu: mailer. The same was directed lo appear before the ofiice ol

uiidersii'iu'd on 27.12.2023 vide letter No. l5h7H dated 26.12.2023.
9 Wanl.-c AlKiullali appeared before the undersigned on 27.12.2023 al Central Prison 

Abdullah suited ihiu lu: am! Ibrar Alam are friends and reside in dieMaidan. Wanl.T , , ,
al iJiMiii i Jail Timergara. Warder Abdullah expressly confessed thai he

K’lip.-.-s ihiny diousaml (30, 000) ihrougli liis personal easypaisa 
„I,,1 ;.,,d dr-livfi.-.i die same aiimiml in cash lo Nascer Alam in presence of his brother 

Alam <111 27.02.2023. Accused Warder Ibrar Alum extended iluinks toWaiJej- lla.ii
...Hiipli.in-.m A-.'..im IJ-Min al'ler successful irmisaclkm in the wtiaisApp voice note.

•IV.' iv’up.-es Tliiriy iliousand (30,000) from Assam Uddin. Warder Ibrar 
Abiiiill.ili’.. mmil.i-i- lo die semli.T. Wliile e.xaiiiining ihe whalsApp voice notes 

n A'.^.mi iMiliii .mil ibi.n Alam .ilioiit die iriiiisaelion of Ruiiees Thirty ihousanti

10. Ill oid'‘i u, j.'i 
Alam I’.iN 
beu^ei
(.'tu,00b).'ll -.■‘lidili'". Oil- l.n'i dial the iiaiisai.-lion has laken place between Ibrar Aliun and

•i|)i and e.Nelamged voice notes between Ibrnr Alum and 
i Jddin 1 li-ai K - lejtiei:. dial Winder Ibrar Alam lias received amouiU Rupees fhiriy 

dioiisaiid (.311,1100) ii<.m Assam Utldiii. l-'iirihermorc. Warder Abdullah has endorsed llie 
iransaciion; a-, iransa. lioii laak place ihrough Warder AbdutUiti’s Fasypaisa account. ^

11. Upon l,•.';ammalioll al aliaisAjip voice notes. Mr. lijrar /Main was reluctant lo reply timely 
to Assam Uddin [oj- Ids work. One day, Assam Uddin went to District Jail Timergara to

Assam Ii<l<Ini '111<' > .i-,v|i.>isa i . 
Assam
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(
is observed that the relationship between complainant Assam Uddin and Warder Ibrar 
Alam got worsened.

FINDINGS/FACTS;

1. The examined voice notes conversed between accused Warder Ibrar Alam and 
complainant Assam Uddin apparently depicts that these notes belong to these two, yet 
for authentication these voice notes need a forensic.

2. Though the accused Weirder Ibrar Alam didn’t disclose his identity as Assistant Director 
(IB) in voice notes but he is persistently directing Assam Uddin to keep the matter as 
secret one and not reveal in public which shows his impersonation. The above used 
words (given in record) prima facie leads to accused Ibrar Alam’s impersonation as if he 
is working for some intelligence agency. Also he is persistently saying in voice notes that 
I am busy in official meetings.

3. Mr. Abid, the previous eye-witness of Rupees Four Lacs (400,000) examined by inquiry 
officer Naveed Iqbal Assistant Superintendent Sub Jail Dir Upper, has departed for KSA. 
Remaining two witnesses (Javed and Sadiq) for Rupees Four Lacs (400,000) were cross 
examined and they stuck to their statements recorded in previous inquiry. Javed told 
that I withdrew amount Rupees Four Lacs (400,000) for Assam Uddin and handed over 
to Sadiq so that Assam Uddin may receive it at Talaash. Till now it shows that this 
amount was meant to be delivered to the accused Warder Ibrar Alam. As in the 
exchanged voice notes between Assam Uddin and Ibrar Alam, Assam Uddin assures 
Ibrar Alam before depairture to Islamabad that his “Amanat” (Money) is with him.

4. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam is expressly showing unfamiliarity with the witness Abid in 
his statement produced before the undersigned. But in his voice chat with Asam Ud Din, 
he discussed with him that he has contacted Abid through voice note. Accused Ibrar 
Alam further said to complainant Asam Ud Din not to inform Mr. Abid (witness of 
complainant Asam Ud Din) about the matter. Moreover, in a tiktok video both Abid and 
Ibrar Alam can be seen in^ a happy mood. Therefore, it is concluded that the accused 
warder Ibrar Alam and the witness Mr. Abid knew each other will before and that the 
accused warder Ibrar Alam gave misstatement to the undersigned.

5. While examining the witnesses and exchanged voice notes, it is proved that the 
complainant Assam Uddin came from Swat to pick Ibrar Alam in Tedaash whereafter 
they proceeded to Islamabad to meet so called D.G (Director General).

6. While inquiring about the eas5qDaisa number 0305-9000988, Warder Ibrar expressly told 
that I have no information- about this number and neither I have done any transaction 
through this number. Warder Ibrar Alam expressed himself unaware about the 
transaction of amount Rupees Thirty Thousand (30,000).

7. On the contrary, upon further investigation, the easypaisa number 0305-9000988 was 
traced out by the undersigned and interestingly the number belonged to an employee of 
Prison Department presently posted at District Jaiil Timergara. His details are (Attached 
as annex'L).

8. That the undersigned deemed it necessary to include Warder Abdullah into the inquiry 
to reach the depth of the matter. The same was directed to appear before the office of 
undersigned on 27.12.2023 vide letter No. 15678 dated 26.12.2023.

9. Warder Abdullah appeared before the undersigned on 27.12.2023 at Central Prison 
Mardan. Warder Abdullah stated that he and Ibrar Alam are friends and reside in the 
same barrak at District Jail Timergara. Warder Abdullah expressly confessed that he 
received amount Rupees thirty thousand (30, 000) through his personal easypaisa 
account and delivered the same amount in cash to Naseer Alam in presence of his 
brother Warder Ibrar Alam on 27.02.2023. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam extended thanks 
to complainant Assam Uddin after successful transaction in the whatsApp voice note.

10. In order to receive Rupees Thirty thousand (30,000) from Assam Uddin, Warder Ibrar 
Alam gave Abdullah’s number to the sender. While examining the whatsApp voice notes 
between Assam Uddin and Ibrar Alam about the transaction of Rupees Thirty thousand 
(30,000), it solidifies the fact that the transaction has taken place between Ibrar Alam 
and Assam Uddin. The easypaisa receipt and exchanged voice notes between Ibrar Alam 
and Assam Uddin clearly depicts that Warder Ibrar Alam has received amount Rupees 
Thirty thousand (30,000) from Assam Uddin. Furthermore, Warder Abdullah has



I
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12. Ibrnr Alain is

CONCLUSION:

! 1. 'rhe c.samincd voice notes c onversed between accused Warder Ibrar Alam and complainant 
Assam Uddin apparently depicts that these notes belong to these two, yet for 
aulhcniication these whalsApp voice notes need a forensic. •

2. Il is licicby concluded that a secret deal for consideration of money has been proved 
between complainant Assam Uddin and Warder Ibrar Alam regarding resolution ofA.ssam 
Uddin family issue by Ibrar Alam, yet for authentication these whatsApp voice notes need 
a forensic.

3. 'I'lic whotsApp voice chats shows prima facie leads to accused Ibrar Alam’s impersonation 
as if he is working for some intelligence agency.

4. As for now, amount Rupees thirt>' thousand (30, 000) is fully proved against Warder Ibrar 
Alam. '

5. While the ainuuni Rupees four lacs (400,000) is partially proved as the complainant 
-A.ssam Uddin has only produced marginal witnesses and there is no documentary proof.

6. That for the lemaining amount Rupees three lacs and twenty thousand (3, 20,000) 
claimed by complainant .Assam Uddin, he couldn’t produce any \vitncss or document, 
hence not proved.

7. Moreover, Warder Ibrar Alam couldn't produce any witness or document for any kind of 
t)-ansaclion amouiit Rs. 10,00,000 (Ten lacs) between his brother Nascer Alam and 
complainant Assam Uddin.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

>
t
;

After conducting a thorough inquiry into the allegations levelled against the 
accused official namely Warder Ibrar Alam S/0 Alamzeb, it is concluded that the allegation 
levelled agafnsl the accused official by the Superintendent Headquarter Prisons Mardan, the 
competenr nuthoniy, on the report of Inspector General of Prisons Khyber Pakhtuiikhwa, 
Pcshawai' Under Section 3 of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Government Servant (Efficiency and 
Discipline) Rules 2011. were PARTIALLY PROVED.

!i IS il-ierefore recommended that the accused official is liable to be proceeded 
under the rdcvani rule ibid.

Subrnittcd for further disposal in accordance with the rules, please.
I

U
RIAZ AHMAD (INQUIRY OFFICER) 

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 
CENTRAL PRISON MARDAN

CERTIFICATE

It i.s certified that the report regarding the accused Warder Ibrar Alam (BPS-07) 
atiachcd to Dish-ici Jail Timcrgara are consisting of Five (05) number of pages duly corrected 
and signed by iiiiv c

RIAZ AHMAD (INQUIRY OFFICER) 
DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 
CENTRAL PRISON MARDAN

^ u'.d Prison Mardan^
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endorsed the transaction; as transaction took place through Warder Abdullah’s 
Easypaisa account.

11. Upon examination of whatsApp voice notes, Mr. Ibrar Alam was reluctant to reply timely 
to Assam Uddin for his work. One day, Assam Uddin went to District Jail Timergara to 
meet Ibrar Alam whereby Ibrar Alam pushed him back to leave at once; he was scared 
that other fellows will be informed about his fraud. Accused Warder Ibrar Alam too 
confirmed that incident and accused Assam Uddin tried to kidnap him from jail 
premises. The personal relationship between Assam Uddin and Warder Ibrar Alam 
disturbed the peaceful environment of Jail.

12. Ibrar Alam is den5dng his relationship with Assam Uddin but they can be seen together 
in a Tik Tok video in pleasant mode.

CONCLUSION:

1. The examined voice notes conversed between accused Warder Ibrar Alaun and 
complainant Assam Uddin; apparently depicts that these notes belong to these two, yet 
for authentication these whatsApp voice notes need a forensic.

2. It is hereby concluded that a secret deal for consideration of money has been proved 
between complainant Assam Uddin and Warder Ibrar Alam regarding resolution of 
Assam Uddin family issue by Ibrar Alam, yet for authentication these whatsApp voice 
notes need a forensic.

3. The whatsApp voice chats shows prima facie leads to accused Ibrar Alam’s 
impersonation as if he is working for some intelligence agency.

4. As for now, amount Rupees thirty thousand (30, 000) is fully proved against Warder 
Ibrar Alam.

5. While the amount Rupees four lacs (400,000) is partially proved as the complainant 
Assam Uddin has only produced marginal witnesses and there is no documentary proof.

6. That for the remaining amount Rupees three lacs and twenty thoussind (3, 20,000) 
claimed by complainant Assam Uddin, he couldn’t produce any witness or document, 
hence not proved.

7. Moreover, Warder Ibrar Alam couldn’t produce any witness or document for any kind of 
transaction amount Rs. l'0,00,000 (Ten lacs) between his brother Naseer Alam and 
complainant Assam Uddin.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

After conducting a thorough inquiry into the allegations levelled against the 
accused official namely Warder Ibrar Alam S/O Alamzeb, it is concluded that the allegation 
levelled against the accused pfficial by the Superintendent Headquarter Prisons Mardan, 
the competent authority, on the report of Inspector General of Prisons Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar Under Section 3 of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Government Servant 
(Efficiency and Discipline) Rules 2011, were PARTIALLY PROVED.

It is therefore recommended that the accused official is liable to be proceeded 
under the relevant rule ibid.

Submitted for further disposal in accordance with the rules, please.

RIAZ AHMAD (INQUIRY OFFICER) 
DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 
CENTRAL PRISON MARDAN

CERTIFICATE
■:

It is certified that the report regarding the accused Warder Ibrar Alam (BPS-07) 
attached to District Jail Timergara are consisting of Five (05) number of pages duly 
corrected and signed by me.

RIAZ AHMAD (INQUIRY OFFICER) 
DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 
CENTRAL PRISON MARDAN
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Dated: 08/01/2024.

Klin
. - 1. Mllh;

^fv-nipcu-ni umlioritv, 

'-/O \ 1. ,lo lici oln’ 

K'lUnvs:- 

'- I'l Thnl

W'lin'.l-i

16-1 l-:n'i23.

(Hi Tlial 

(■'-'cord and oihcr

iHiiuiui Arif

Khybar I'
'' (Ill's-U!}

'■’'^'^'Unkluvi
8up<;niiU;n(t(Mit

> Oovcniiiuuit 1 

mvWam_S/0.^j_a,nzcfa

Headquarter 1‘rir.on
8ciA-anis (Klficiency

Mardan
Oiscipline) Rules 

- ^'I'uchcd to District ,j,,j,Ti

as
^V,

rnergara
conscciucnt '‘Pon ilic uoniplciio,j of i 

''PPorU.niiy of hcari
- inquiry conducted 

>ig vide this ofnee
xverc pisv.n against you by the Inquiry Officer for 

communication No, 3238-43 dated:
on

con‘nePcd'',^p!’' “f ‘he Inquiry OfOcer,

hcrcnce before the said Inquliy Omcer.
mm.tted the rollorving art/ omission specified in section 3 of the said rule.

Status/impersonation/fraud.

the material on
ara s:uistlcd that yoti have

C-hai-gcs of ntisuse of officiala.

-6s a result thereof. 1. as -
Removal from Service”

competent Authority have tentatiively decided to impose upon vou the Majoh 
under section 4 of the said rules.

^e^.ali^• of “

'i ou arc therefore 

(.ipon you, also intimate 

'If no reply to this

o -
required to show cause as to why the aforesaid penalty should 

in person.
not be imposed■Irellicr you desire to be heard i

.. y,„ „ a, , , , ->■- "lore than fifteen davs of i■ . ).„-l be presumed that you have no defence to put in and in that ease

\\
•1-

115 deliver,', 
an ex-parte action shall be takennutiinst you.

A HOjw of the findings of the inquiiy officer is enclosed.,' >

^ SU PE^iyrE N D E NT 
li^^ILE H(is/PR130N MARDANc■' ■'iH'0:';,t;r;'ivij; Nq, /. Dated. 08/01/2024.

tj] iiie iiiKj\-e is forwarded to:- /
'’•’onhv (lenerai of Pri

Tr.rt
’i-isons Khyber Pakhtunklnva Peshawar for inlormahoPi 

- H'gara for information and with the
eksise

request ihat one cop',' of 

as a token. C'f its rieeiot anu'
P." kh'jv. C:

y liigned and daled by ihe accused official
! •'■’"'-'■6 iK'h oliict; fur record please.

'-/'^'^'T'ennieiulent District dm! Thmirgara,

t J
(./

■rrer-*""

SUl’ERINTEND'PN'l 
^C^LE HC/S I'RISON

/

Pepu/y
i^'

Scanned with CamScanner



¥J0
''^''IMiRlNTl'NDliNTCIKCLi; HQS. PRISON MARDAN
' n

/ I I >,.>. <11. * I,. I .< ^'.I.',. 1. Ir'x X •,* H<-

; 01/02/2024, R-M„il: ^ 0937-843IHniiir<l;iiijnil(7p)';ii;iil.(:()ni
opfLce

WilivUl^AS, : nnkinl/Wttr(li;i- Ibmr Alnm S/0 Alamzcb attached to District 
iio' within the incnninf- of Rnlc-3 of Khyhcr Pakhtunkhwa Government

’-''ou-nu'ni if u" ""'- Rules, 2011 for (he charges of liis misconduct contained in
Ko 'VV)9^ ,,-5' l-i>iseiplinary Action served U]:ion him vide this Headquarter endorsement

R'-l 1-2023 wherein Mr, Riaz Ahmad, Dcpiily Superintendent Central Prison
'''"‘‘-"usappoimed as Inquiry omccr,

v-y

AND WHEREAS, he furnished his written reply/dcfcnce to the Inquiry officer without 
docuiiK ntiiiy pvonf/evidence and the allcgnlions/chmgcs against him were Partially Proved.

AND WHEREAS, the accused official was proceeded against under Rule-14(4) for the 
v laiges oi hisi)uscoiKiucl/noglii>cncc in the performance of duly, as mentioned in llio Show Cause 
Notice No, (i9-7l dated. 08-01-2024,

I anv

AND WHEREAS, he furnished his written reply/dcfcncc without any documentary 
..I was found tin-satisfaclory.

AND WHEREAS, the undersigned being competent authority granted him the 
opporlunuy of persona! hearing on 01-02-2024 as provided for under rules ibid. The accused 
official coinpk'tely failed to defend his case vGth documentary proof/evidencc.

NOW THEREFORE, in exercise of powers conferred under Rule-14(5) of Khyber 
akhninhhua Gmemment Senaants (Efficiency & Discipline) Rules 2011, having considered the 

Inqu.is icpon, cliargcs levelled against him and evidence on record, the undersigned beirw 
.ompaem Atuhorny after observing all legal procedural formalities, hereby awtu-clod the Major 

1 cnaltv of Remova from Services” with immediate effect to accused olllcial/Warder Ibrar Alam 
S/0 Alaiii/cl) auaelied to District Jail Timergara for his 
suuus/impcrsnnalion/rraud.

proof/evidenev wl-iich

miseonduct/misusc of official

dl SUPERINTENDENT 
l4iQS. PRISON MARDANbndsi. N().'is(-i7,- (l!,Tl- CIRCLE(/PB Dated: 01/02/2024. 

D<)|iv of ili,j above is forwarded lo:-
iaspi eiof1- 'Iho 1 al

................... .........
.......... .......... :............ '

•■"""--4- Di, .nron™,.„„7d '

with

iiil
fur

\f ''■' A'' oiiiii.- (qih-
til'

necessary action. '

'^'^"•ici JailTuncrgura,

/ ^ ^UPERlflTENDENT 
(^circle hos. prison MARD.AN

Mpuw Su^rjntcjtdcnt
[’MStni MiirdaDj
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OFFICE OFTME
INSPECTOR GENERAL OF PRISONS 

KHYBEr'^?
/Si oai-Va,'.
No.E-ilbVWard/OfOors/
Dalod - 3

WHEREAS, Ex-Wnrflcr Ibrnr Alarn S/o Mam Zcl) while; attached to District 

'vas awarded the major penalty of “Removal from Service” by 
Supcnniendent Circle Headquarters Prison Mardan vide Order No. 362/PB dated 01- 

02-202'l due to his misconduct.

AND WHEREAS, the said Ex-Warder preferred his departmental appeal 
lui setting aside the penalty awarded to him and also requested for reinstatement in 

service.
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? JfHTUNKHWA PESHAWAR 
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ORDER;

hail Timci'gnra

AND WHEREAS, his appeal was examined in light of the available record 

of the case and it was obsciwed that the penalty was awarded to him by the competent 

authority due to his misconduct after observing all legal and cocial formalities as 

required under Government Servants (Efficiency & Discipline) Rules, 201 1. Moreover, 
the appeal was filed on 18-04-2024 and found time barred.

NOW THEREFORE, having considered the charges, evidences / facts on 

record, explunalion of the accused official in his appeal, the provision of rules in vugue 

and in exercise of powers conferred under Rule-17 of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 

Government Servants (Efficiency & Discipline) Rules, 2011 read with Rule-05 of 

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Service Appeal Rules 1986, the decision of the 

authority is upheld and appeal of the appellant is hereby rejected being time barred 

and without any facts / merit.

competent

ADDL; INSPECTOR GENERAL OF PRISONS 
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, PESHAWARE.NDST; NO ,,•).) A .3^) '7<9 /-

C(q;v/jj the aimve is forwarded to the:
—-'1. Su|,<:ririii'iidcnt, l-leadcjuarters Prison

.iCli'Hl
Mardan for information and neccssaiww/r K; his order referred to above. 

2. Sui;t;i inicndcnl, Dislricl Jail
tf,,.

Timcrgartt for informatio 
buperinlcndcnt HQs Prison 

'hreeted to inform the

■' Khyher Pakhtunkh

n and nccessttn- actionv.'jl I 
i’iIvjVi' I I Mardtut order referred to 

ap])ellant accordingly arid also to make
proper attestation.
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AUTHORITY LETTER
Mr.Sulaiman, Law Ofricer{BPS-17) attached to the office of Inspector 

General of Prisons Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Peshawar is hereby authorized to make 

affidavit, to file comments/reply/report and to attend, the Lower Courts, 
Ombudsperson, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Service Tribunal, Peshawar High Court 
Peshawar, Supreme Court of Pakistan Islamabad, Federal Shariat Court, meeting of 

scrutiny committee at Law Department and also to attend the office of Advocate 

General Khyber Pakhtunkhwa at Peshawar on each and every date of hearing, on 

behalf of the Inspector General of Prisons Khyber Pakhtunkhwa .
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